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Federal Summary 
 

City of Spokane 
Spokane County 

January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 
 
 
The results of our audit of the City of Spokane are summarized below in accordance with U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
An unmodified opinion was issued on the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting: 
 

• Significant Deficiencies:  We identified deficiencies in the design or operation of internal 
control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

 
• Material Weaknesses:  We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material 

weaknesses. 
 
We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the 
City. 
 
FEDERAL AWARDS 
 
Internal Control Over Major Programs: 
 

• Significant Deficiencies:  We identified deficiencies in the design or operation of internal 
control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

 
• Material Weaknesses:  We identified deficiencies that we consider to be material 

weaknesses. 
 
We issued an unmodified opinion on the City’s compliance with requirements applicable to each 
of its major federal programs, with the exception of the CFDA 11.555 Public Safety Interoperable 
Communications Grant Program, CFDA 14.218/14.253 Community Development Block 
Grants/Entitlement Grants Cluster and CFDA 14.235 Supportive Housing Program on which we 
issued a qualified opinion on compliance with applicable requirements. 
 
We reported findings that are required to be disclosed under section 510(a) of OMB 
Circular A-133. 
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Identification of Major Programs: 
 
The following were major programs during the period under audit:  
 

CFDA No. Program Title 
  

11.555 Public Safety Interoperable Communications Grant Program 
14.218 Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants Program 

Cluster 
14.235 Supportive Housing Program 
14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
14.253 CDBG – Entitlement Grants Cluster - Community Development Block 

Grant ARRA Entitlement Grants (Recovery Act)  
14.907 ARRA - Lead Based Paint Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing 

(Recovery Act) 
16.710 Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants 
16.738 JAG Program Cluster - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance 

Grant Program 
16.804 
 
 
66.458 

JAG Program Cluster - ARRA - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 
Assistance Grant (JAG) Program/Grants to Units of Local Government 
(Recovery Act) 
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 

 
The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by 
OMB Circular A-133, was $793,590. 
 
The City did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-133. 
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Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs 

 
City of Spokane 
Spokane County 

January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 
 
 
1. The City did not have adequate internal controls to properly manage grant 

funds in compliance with federal grant requirements for its Public Safety 
Interoperable Communications Grant. 
 
CFDA Number and Title: 11.555 - Public Safety Interoperable 

Communications Grant 
Federal Grantor Name: U.S. Department of Commerce 
Federal Award/Contract Number: NA 
Pass-through Entity Name: Military Department  
Pass-through Award/Contract 
Number: 

 
E08-358 

Questioned Cost Amount: $0 
 

Description of Condition 
 
During 2012, the Spokane Police Department spent $1,745,424 in federal Public Safety 
Interoperable Communications Grant funds.  The purpose of the grant is to enhance 
countywide communication capabilities if it is necessary to respond to and recover from 
disasters and incidents of terrorism.  The grant award, including amendments, indicated 
the grant funds could be incurred and obligated through June 30, 2012.  
 
Cash Management  
Recipients of federal grants are required to establish internal controls to minimize the time 
that elapses between the receipt of federal funds from the grantor, and the payment of 
those funds to vendors who provide goods or services. Interest earnings that exceed $100 
per year from excess cash balances must be paid to the federal grantor. 
 
Our audit found the Police Department did not expend amounts requested in a timely 
manner. The City requested reimbursement for the entire grant amount on July 25, 2012 
and funds were received from the grantor on August 2, 2012.  The City paid $1,679,305 
of the grant expenditures on September 25, 2012, and the remaining $66,119 on 
October 3, 2012.  In addition, the Department did not calculate interest earnings on the 
cash balance to determine if a portion of those earnings should be paid to the grantor. 
 
Period of Availability 
Federal grant recipients are required to establish internal controls that ensure 
expenditures are obligated and paid within the approved period of availability.  Federal 
law provides a period of up to 90 days after the end of the funding period to pay vendors 
for allowable grant expenditures. 
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Since the grant period ended on June 30, 2012, the City had until September 30, 2012 to 
pay vendors.   The payment made on October 3, 2012, was outside of the period of 
availability.   
 
Cause of Condition 
 
City personnel did not follow established controls to:  

• Monitor grant funds received to ensure timely vendor payment. 

• Evaluate cash balances for cash management requirements, including the 
calculation of interest earnings.  

• Monitor the period of availability to ensure all vendor payments were made within 
the allowed time period.   

 
Effect of Condition and Questioned Costs 
 
The City did not take steps to reduce the time elapsing from the date it received federal 
funds to the date it spent the funds on program costs.  The City calculated that it earned 
$2,416 of interest on the cash balances.  Interest earnings in excess of $100 must be 
returned to the grantor.   
 
The City paid $66,119 in grant funds to vendors outside of the allowable time period.   

 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend the City: 

• Follow controls to minimize the time between receipt of funds from the granting 
agency and disbursement of those funds.   

• Compute interest earned on advance funds and remit it to the grantor when 
required.   

• Establish and follow controls to ensure grant funds are spent within the allowable 
time period.   

 
We also recommend the City remit the $2,316 of interest earned during the 2012 program 
year to the Department of Commerce.     
 
City’s Response 
 
The City will be taking the following actions related to this finding: 

• Implement a new city-wide procedure for grant funded expenditures that will 
eliminate the need to draw down cash from grantors in advance of payments to 
vendors or subrecipients who provide goods and services.   

• Review procedures and train staff on procedures for monitoring period of 
availability on paymnts for grant funded expenditures. 
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Interest earnings of $2,416 on the excess cash balance in 2012 have been sent to the 
U.S. Department of Commerce. 
 
The City thanks the State Auditors Office for their recommendation, and looks forward to 
the resolution of this item in subsequent audits. 

 
Auditor’s Remarks 
 
We thank the City for its cooperation and assistance during the audit and acknowledge its 
commitment to improving the condition described. We will review the status of this issue 
during our next audit. 
 
Applicable Laws and Regulations 
 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States Local 
Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations, Subpart C, Section 300 states in part: 

The auditee shall: 
  
(b) Maintain internal control over Federal programs that provides 
reasonable assurance that the auditee is managing Federal awards in 
compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements that could have a material effect on each of its Federal 
programs.  

 
Title 15, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 24.20 Standards for financial management 
systems, states in part: 
 

(b)(7) Cash management. Procedures for minimizing the time elapsing 
between the transfer of funds from the U.S. Treasury and disbursement by 
grantees and subgrantees must be followed whenever advance payment 
procedures are used. Grantees must establish reasonable procedures to 
ensure the receipt of reports on subgrantees’ cash balances and cash 
disbursements in sufficient time to enable them to prepare complete and 
accurate cash transactions reports to the awarding agency. When 
advances are made by letter-of-credit or electronic transfer of funds 
methods, the grantee must make drawdowns as close as possible to the 
time of making disbursements. Grantees must monitor cash drawdowns by 
their subgrantees to assure that they conform substantially to the same 
standards of timing and amount as apply to advances to the grantees. 

 
Title 15, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 24.23 Period of availability of funds, states 
in part: 
 

(b) Liquidation of obligations. A grantee must liquidate all obligations 
incurred under the award not later than 90 days after the end of the funding 
period. 
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Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs 

 
City of Spokane 
Spokane County 

January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 
 
 
2. The City did not have adequate internal controls to comply with federal grant 

requirements for its Community Development Block Grants.  
 
CFDA Number and Title: 14.218 Community Development Block 

Grants/Entitlement Grants 
14.253 Community Development Block 
Grant/Entitlement Grants (American Recovery 
and Reinvestment Act) 

Federal Grantor Name: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 

Federal Award/Contract Number: B10-MC-530006 
B11-MC-530006 
B09-MY-53-0006 

Pass-through Entity Name: NA 
Pass-through Award/Contract 
Number: 

 
NA 

Questioned Cost Amount: $1,058,692 (non-Recovery Act funds) 
$0 (Recovery Act funds) 

 
Description of Condition 
 
During 2012, the City spent $4,789,801 in federal Community Development Block Grant 
funds, of which $50,000 was from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act. The City 
used this funding to provide housing and to expand economic opportunities for persons of 
low and moderate income.  The Community Housing and Human Services Department 
administers the block grant program.  
 
Time and Effort 
We audited the Community Housing and Human Services Department’s internal controls 
over payroll to determine whether $1,058,692 of salaries and benefits charged to the grant 
were supported by time and effort documentation as required by federal regulations. 
Depending on the number of activities in which an employee works, time and effort 
documentation can be provided on a semi-annual certification or a monthly personnel 
activity report, such as a timesheet.  
 
Our audit identified a significant deficiency in internal controls.  We found the Department’s 
employees allocate payroll costs to grants based on the total expenditures for each grant 
program rather than on the actual time worked.  Employees do not track actual hours 
worked on each grant or complete time and effort documentation. 
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Cash Management 
Recipients of federal grants are required to establish internal controls to minimize the time 
that elapses between the receipt of federal funds from the grantor, and the payment of 
those funds to vendors who provide goods or services. Interest earnings that exceed $100 
per year from excess cash balances must be paid to the federal grantor promptly and at 
least quarterly. 
 
Our audit found that while the Department calculated interest earned on excess cash 
balances, employees did not remit interest earnings for the third and fourth quarter of 2012 
to the grantor until the auditors requested records for audit in July of 2013.  
 
Reporting 
Grant recipients use the Federal Financial Report (SF-425) to report federal award 
expenditures and the cash status of grants, when applicable, on a quarterly basis.  We 
found that the City did not submit the third and fourth quarter reports until requested for 
audit.      
 
Program Income 
Program income is income generated from grant-related activities and is treated as 
additional grant funding.  It is subject to all grant requirements and must be spent on 
program activities before additional cash draws are made.  Federal regulations allow cash 
balances to be held with the approval of the grantor.    

 
We found the Department estimates future grant expenditures, with an allowance for the 
current cash balance, to determine a cash draw amount that will ensure a remaining cash 
balance of approximately $100,000.  The Department has not received approval from the 
grantor to maintain a cash balance. 

 
Cause of Condition 
 
Time and Effort 
Department employees are responsible for the oversight and monitoring of a number of 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) grants. The Department 
established a payroll allocation method based on total grant expenditures, instead of 
actual hours worked, as a less labor-intensive method than requiring employees to 
prepare detailed personnel activity reports or timesheets.  
 
We communicated the same condition for the year ended December 31, 2011, in an audit 
report dated September 18, 2012.  The City immediately committed resources to update 
policies and develop a new payroll allocation system, however, the new system required 
complex programing.  Testing was completed in November 2012 and the new system was 
then available for employee use in January 2013. 

 
Cash Management and Reporting 
Due to staff turnover the Department did not follow established controls to ensure interest 
is remitted and quarterly reports are submitted to the grantor timely.   
 
Program Income 
Department employees are operating under the assumption that they have approval from 
HUD to maintain a reasonable excess cash balance which they have defined as 
approximately $100,000. The Department could provide no evidence of HUD approval for 
this cash balance. 
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Effect of Condition and Questioned Costs 
 
Time and Effort 
Federal regulations allow for substitute time-recording systems with the approval of the 
grantor. Since the Department did not obtain approval for the alternative allocation system, 
salaries and benefits of $1,058,692 for the Department were not supported by time and 
effort documentation as required.  Without documentation, the Department is unable to 
substantiate the accuracy of payroll costs to its block grant in the manner required by the 
grantor.  

 
Cash Management and Reporting 
Since the Department did not remit interest earnings timely, HUD was denied access to 
third quarter interest of $2,339 for nine months and $1,558 of fourth quarter interest for 
five months. In addition, program operating information needed to monitor and evaluate 
the grant’s financial activities was not available to the grantor. 
 
Program Income 
The Department made a $93,333 cash draw on February 28, 2012, when it had a cash 
balance of at least $123,583.  The Department continued to make additional cash draws 
throughout the year without determining it had spent its program income.  We 
communicated the same condition for the year ended December 31, 2011, in an audit 
report dated September 18, 2012.  The Department still has not received formal approval 
from HUD for this cash balance. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend the Community Housing and Human Services Department:  
 

• Establish and follow internal controls to ensure it complies with federal grant 
requirements related to documentation of employee time and effort. 

• Comply with its established procedures and federal requirements for remitting 
interest earnings in excess of $100 to HUD. 

• Communicate with HUD regarding the disposition of its current cash balance. 
 
City’s Response 
 
The City either has already or will be taking the following actions related to this finding: 

• Effective January 1, 2013 the City implemented a time and effort tracking system 
so that salaries and benefits will be supported by the necessary documentation 
required by federal regulations.   

• In response to the questioned costs for 2012, the City is consulting with the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development to develop an acceptable 
rationale for allocating the questioned costs to the various grants administered by 
the Community, Housing and Human Services Department.   

• Review, revise in writing if necessary, and train City staff on procedures for 
compliance with all reporting and cash management requirements.  
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• Communicate with the grantor on the proper disposition of the City’s current cash 
balance. 

• The City has requested, and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development as agreed to provide, technical assistance to develop best practices 
in the management of federal grants. 

 
The City thanks the State Auditors Office for their recommendations, and looks forward to 
the resolution of these items in subsequent audits. 

 
Auditor’s Remarks 
 
We thank the City for its cooperation and assistance during the audit.  We will review the 
status of this issue during our next audit.  

 
Applicable Laws and Regulations 
 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local and 
Indian Tribal Governments (2 CRF Part 225), Attachment B, Section 8(h), states in part: 
 

(4) Where employees work on multiple activities or cost objectives, a 
distribution of their salaries or wages will be supported by personnel activity 
reports or equivalent documentation which meets the standards in 
subsection (5) unless a statistical sampling system (see subsection (6)) or 
other substitute system has been approved by the cognizant Federal 
agency. Such documentary support will be required where employees work 
on: 

(a) More than one Federal award, 
(b) A Federal award and a non Federal award, 
(c) An indirect cost activity and a direct cost activity, 
(d) Two or more indirect activities which are allocated using different 
allocation bases, or 
(e) An unallowable activity and a direct or indirect cost activity.  

 

(5) Personnel activity reports or equivalent documentation must meet the 
following standards: 

(a) They must reflect an after the fact distribution of the actual 
activity of each employee,  
(b) They must account for the total activity for which each employee 
is compensated,  
(c) They must be prepared at least monthly and must coincide with 
one or more pay periods, and  
(d) They must be signed by the employee. 
(e) Budget estimates or other distribution percentages determined 
before the services are performed do not qualify as support for 
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charges to Federal awards but may be used for interim accounting 
purposes, provided that: 

(i) The governmental unit's system for establishing the 
estimates produces reasonable approximations of the 
activity actually performed; 

(ii) At least quarterly, comparisons of actual costs to 
budgeted distributions based on the monthly activity reports 
are made. Costs charged to Federal awards to reflect 
adjustments made as a result of the activity actually 
performed may be recorded annually if the quarterly 
comparisons show the differences between budgeted and 
actual costs are less than ten percent; and 

(iii) The budget estimates or other distribution percentages 
are revised at least quarterly, if necessary, to reflect 
changed circumstances. 

U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States Local 
Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations, Subpart C, Section 300 states in part: 

The auditee shall: 
  
(b) Maintain internal control over Federal programs that provides 
reasonable assurance that the auditee is managing Federal awards in 
compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements that could have a material effect on each of its Federal 
programs.  

 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States Local 
Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations, Compliance Supplement 2012 Part 3, Cash 
Management states in part: 

 
Interest earned by local government and Indian tribal government grantees 
and subgrantees on advances is required to be submitted promptly, but at 
least quarterly, to the Federal agency. 

 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States Local 
Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations, Compliance Supplement 2012 Part 3, 
Reporting states in part: 

 
Recipients use the Federal Financial Report as a standardized format to 
report expenditures under Federal awards, as well as, when applicable, 
cash status (Line 10.a, 10.b, and 10c). References to this report include its 
applicability as both an expenditure and a cash status report unless 
otherwise indicated.   
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Title 24, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 570.504 – Program Income, states in part: 
 

(2) If the recipient chooses to retain program income, that program income 
shall be disposed of as follows: 

(i) Program income in the form of repayments to, or interest earned 
on, a revolving fund as defined in Sec. 570.500(b) shall be 
substantially disbursed from the fund before additional cash 
withdrawls are made from the U.S. Treasury for the same activity. 
(This rule does not prevent a lump sum disbursement to finance the 
rehabilitation of privately owned properties as provided for in Sec. 
570.513.) 

(ii) Substantially all other program income shall be disbursed for 
eligible activities before additional cash withdrawals are made from 
the U.S. Treasury.   
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Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs 

 
City of Spokane 
Spokane County 

January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 
 
 
3. The City did not have adequate internal controls to ensure compliance with 

federal grant requirements for its Supporting Housing Grant.   
 
CFDA Number and Title: 14.235 Supporting Housing Program 
Federal Grantor Name: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development 
Federal Award/Contract Number: NA 
Pass-through Entity Name: NA 
Pass-through Award/Contract 
Number: 

 
NA 

Questioned Cost Amount: $0 
 
Description of Condition 
 
During 2012, the City spent $1,995,382 in federal Supportive Housing Grant funds.  The 
City used the funds to develop housing and support services that assist the homeless in 
living as independently as possible.  The Community Housing and Services Department 
administers the program.   
 
Time and Effort 
We audited the Community Housing and Services Department’s internal controls over 
payroll to determine whether $147,706 of salaries and benefits charged to the grant were 
supported by time and effort documentation as required by federal regulations.  Depending 
on the number of activities in which an employee works, time and effort documentation 
can be provided on a semi-annual certification or a monthly personnel activity report such 
as a timesheet.    
 
Our audit identified a significant deficiency in internal controls.  The Department has 
established a control that requires employees to print and sign a monthly timesheet.  
However, we found that although Department employees recorded their time on monthly 
time reports during 2012, these reports were not printed or signed as required by federal 
regulations.   
 
Subrecipient Monitoring/Matching 
The grant requires the City to provide a matching cash contribution of 20 percent for 
support services and 25 percent for operating costs.  The Community Housing and 
Services Department used grant funds of $ 1,847,776 to contract with other agencies to 
provide supportive housing programs and each agreement includes these matching 
requirements. 
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Our audit identified a material weakness in internal controls.  The Department has 
established controls that require the monitoring of matching requirements by reviewing 
other funding sources received by the subrecipient agencies and making on-site 
monitoring visits when deemed necessary.  However, we found the Department did not 
perform these monitoring activities during 2012. The Department only requested verbal 
verification from each agency that the matching requirement was met without reviewing 
any records or documents. 
 
Cause of Condition 
 
Due to staff turnover the Department did not follow established time and effort 
documentation controls or controls to monitor matching requirements.   
 
Effect of Condition and Questioned Costs 
 
Personnel activity reports were not printed and signed by employees; therefore, they did 
not meet federal time and effort standards.  Since salaries and benefits charged to the 
grant were supported by personnel activity reports we will not question these costs.   
 
Subrecipients submitted financial data, including funding sources that qualified for the 
matching requirement, with monthly reimbursement requests; however, the City did not 
follow established controls to review this information and ensure matching requirements 
were met.  Since financial data was submitted by subrecipients auditors were able to 
perform procedures to ensure matching requirements were met.  As such, we were able 
to determine the subrecipients complied with this requirement. 

 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend the Community, Housing and Human Services Department follow its 
established internal controls and ensure: 

• Time and effort documentation is signed by the employee as required. 

• Subrecipients are monitored for the achievement of matching requirements.  
 
City’s Response 
 
The City will be taking the following actions related to this finding: 

• Time and Effort:  Review and confirm with City staff previously established 
procedures for proper certification of time and effort documentation. 

• Subrecipient Monitoring/Matching:   Review and confirm with City staff previously 
established procedures to ensure that subrecipient monitoring and all other grant 
related requirements are met.  

 
As the auditor noted, no questioned costs were identified as part of this finding because 
subsequent procedures determined that all costs reviewed were for allowable program 
purposes.   
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The City thanks the State Auditors Office for their recommendations, and looks forward to 
the resolution of these items in subsequent audits. 
 
Auditor’s Remarks 
 
We thank the City for its cooperation and assistance during the audit and acknowledge its 
commitment to improving the condition described. We will review the status of this issue 
during our next audit. 
 
Applicable Laws and Regulations 
 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local and 
Indian Tribal Governments (2 CRF Part 225), Attachment B, Section 8(h), states in part: 
 

(5) Personnel activity reports or equivalent documentation must meet the 
following standards: 

 
(a) They must reflect an after the fact distribution of the actual 
activity of each employee, 
 
(b) They must account for the total activity for which each employee 
is compensated, 
 
(c) They must be prepared at least monthly and must coincide with 
one or more pay periods, and 
 
(d) They must be signed by the employee. 

 
Title 24, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 85.24 Matching or cost sharing, states in 
part: 
 

Matching or cost sharing. 
 
(a) Basic rule: Costs and contributions acceptable. With the qualifications 

and exceptions listed in paragraph (b) of this section, a matching or 
cost sharing requirement may be satisfied by either or both of the 
following: 
 

(1) Allowable costs incurred by the grantee, subgrantee or a cost-
type contractor under the assistance agreement. This includes 
allowable costs borne by non-Federal grants or by others cash 
donations from non-Federal third parties. 
 
(2) The value of third party in-kind contributions applicable to the 
period to which the cost sharing or matching requirements applies.  
 
(6) Records. Costs and third party in-kind contributions counting 
towards satisfying a cost sharing or matching requirement must be 
verifiable from the records of grantees and subgrantee or cost-type 
contractors. These records must show how the value placed on 
third party in-kind contributions was derived. To the extent feasible, 
volunteer services will be supported by the same methods that the 
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organization uses to support the allocability of regular personnel 
costs. 
 

The U.S. Office of Management and Budget’s Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, outlines responsibilities for pass-through 
entities receiving federal funds and states in part:  

 
Section 300  
 

The auditee shall  
 
(a) Maintain internal control over Federal programs that provides 

reasonable assurance that the auditee is managing Federal 
awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of 
contracts or grant agreements that could have a material effect 
on each of its federal programs.  

 
Section 400  
 

(d) Pass-through entity responsibilities:  
 
A pass-through entity shall perform the following for the Federal 
awards it makes:  

 
(3) Monitor the activities of subrecipients as necessary to 
ensure that Federal awards are used for authorized 
purposes in compliance with laws, regulations, and the 
provisions of contracts or grant agreements and those 
performance goals are achieved.  

 
(4) Ensure that subrecipients expending $300,000 
($500,000 for fiscal years ending after December 31, 2003) 
or more in Federal awards during the subrecipient's fiscal 
year have met the audit requirements of this part for that 
fiscal year.  

 
(5) Issue a management decision on audit findings within six 
months after receipt of the subrecipient's audit report and 
ensure that the subrecipient takes appropriate and timely 
corrective action.  

 
(6) Consider whether subrecipient audits necessitate 
adjustment of the pass-through entity's own records. 
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Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs 

 
City of Spokane 
Spokane County 

January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 
 
 
4. The City did not have adequate internal controls to ensure compliance with 

time and effort requirements for its Home Investment Partnership Program 
Grant.  
 
CFDA Number and Title: 14.239 Home Investment Partnership Program  
Federal Grantor Name: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development 
Federal Award/Contract Number: M08-MC-530201 

M09-MC-530201 
M10-MC-530201 
M11-MC-530201 
M12-MC-530201 

Pass-through Entity Name: NA 
Pass-through Award/Contract 
Number: 

 
NA 

Questioned Cost Amount: $106,934 (non-Recovery Act funds) 
 $0 (Recovery Act funds) 

 
Description of Condition 
 
During 2012, the City spent $1,472,988 in federal Home Investment Partnership Program 
funds.  The City used this funding to expand the supply of affordable housing for persons 
with low or very low income.  The Community Housing and Human Services Department 
administers the grant program.  
 
Time and Effort 
We audited the Community Housing and Human Services Department’s internal controls 
over payroll to determine whether $ 106,934 of salaries and benefits charged to the grant 
were supported by time and effort documentation as required by federal regulations. 
Depending on the number of activities in which an employee works, time and effort 
documentation can be provided on a semi-annual certification or a monthly personnel 
activity report, such as a timesheet.  
 
Our audit identified a significant deficiency in internal controls. We found the Department’s 
employees allocate payroll costs to grants based on the total expenditures for each grant 
program rather than on the actual time worked. Employees do not track actual hours 
worked on each grant or complete time and effort documentation. 
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Cause of Condition 
 
Department employees are responsible for the oversight and monitoring of a number of 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) grants. The Department 
established a payroll allocation method based on total grant expenditures, instead of 
actual hours worked, as a less labor-intensive method than requiring employees to 
prepare detailed personnel activity reports or timesheets.  

 
Effect of Condition and Questioned Costs 
 
Federal regulations allow for substitute time-recording systems with the approval of the 
grantor. Since the Department did not obtain approval for the alternative allocation system, 
salaries and benefits of $106,934 for the Department were not supported by time and 
effort documentation as required. Without documentation, the Department is unable to 
substantiate the accuracy of payroll costs to this grant in the manner required by the 
grantor.  
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend the Community Housing and Human Services Department establish and 
follow appropriate internal controls to ensure it meets federal time and effort requirements. 
 
City’s Response 
 
The City either has already or will be taking the following actions related to this finding: 

• Effective January 1, 2013, the City implemented a time and effort tracking system 
so that salaries and benefits will be supported by the necessary documentation 
required by federal regulations.   

• In response to the questioned costs for 2012, the City is consulting with the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development to develop an acceptable 
rationale for allocating the questioned costs to the various grants administered by 
the Community, Housing and Human Services Department.   

 
The City thanks the State Auditors Office for their recommendations, and looks forward to 
the resolution of these items in subsequent audits. 

 
Auditor’s Remarks 
 
We appreciate the City’s commitment to resolving this issue. We will review the condition 
during our next audit.  
 
Applicable Laws and Regulations 
 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local 
and Indian Tribal Governments (2 CRF Part 225), Attachment B, Section 8(h), states in 
part: 
 

(4) Where employees work on multiple activities or cost objectives, a 
distribution of their salaries or wages will be supported by personnel activity 
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reports or equivalent documentation which meets the standards in 
subsection (5) unless a statistical sampling system (see subsection (6)) or 
other substitute system has been approved by the cognizant Federal 
agency. Such documentary support will be required where employees work 
on: 
 

(a) More than one Federal award, 
(b) A Federal award and a non-Federal award, 
(c) An indirect cost activity and a direct cost activity, 
(d) Two or more indirect activities which are allocated using different 
allocation bases, or 
(e) An unallowable activity and a direct or indirect cost activity.  

 
(5) Personnel activity reports or equivalent documentation must meet the 
following standards: 
 

(a) They must reflect an after the fact distribution of the actual 
activity of each employee, 
 
(b) They must account for the total activity for which each employee 
is compensated, 
 
(c) They must be prepared at least monthly and must coincide with 
one or more pay periods, and 
 
(d) They must be signed by the employee. 
 
(e) Budget estimates or other distribution percentages determined 
before the services are performed do not qualify as support for 
charges to Federal awards but may be used for interim accounting 
purposes, provided that: 

 
(i) The governmental unit's system for establishing the 
estimates produces reasonable approximations of the 
activity actually performed; 
 
(ii) At least quarterly, comparisons of actual costs to 
budgeted distributions based on the monthly activity reports 
are made. Costs charged to Federal awards to reflect 
adjustments made as a result of the activity actually 
performed may be recorded annually if the quarterly 
comparisons show the differences between budgeted and 
actual costs are less than ten percent; and 
 
(iii) The budget estimates or other distribution percentages 
are revised at least quarterly, if necessary, to reflect 
changed circumstances. 
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Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs 

 
City of Spokane 
Spokane County 

January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 
 
 
5. The City did not have adequate internal controls to ensure compliance with 

time and effort requirements for its Lead-Based Paint Grant.  
 
CFDA Number and Title: 14.907 ARRA Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control 

in Privately-Owned Housing (Recovery Act 
Funded) 

Federal Grantor Name: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 

Federal Award/Contract Number: WA LHB 0429-08 
Pass-through Entity Name: NA 
Pass-through Award/Contract 
Number: 

 
NA 

Questioned Cost Amount: $32,191 (Recovery Act funds) 
 
Description of Condition 
 
During 2012, the City spent $411,468 in federal Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control from 
the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act. The City used this funding to evaluate and 
control lead-based paint hazards in low-income residential housing.  Community Housing 
and Human Services Department employees administer and monitor the program.  The 
Department contracts with vendors to perform the hazard assessments and housing 
renovations.   
 
Time and Effort 
We audited the Community Housing and Human Services Department’s internal controls 
over payroll to determine whether $32,191 of salaries and benefits charged to the grant 
were supported by time and effort documentation as required by federal regulations. 
Depending on the number of activities in which an employee works, time and effort 
documentation can be provided on a semi-annual certification or a monthly personnel 
activity report, such as a timesheet.  
 
Our audit identified a significant deficiency in internal controls.  We found the Department’s 
employees allocate payroll costs to grants based on the total expenditures for each grant 
program rather than on the actual time worked. Employees do not track actual hours 
worked on each grant or complete time and effort documentation. 
 
Cause of Condition 
 
Department employees are responsible for the oversight and monitoring of a number of 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) grants. The Department 
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established a payroll allocation method based on total grant expenditures, instead of 
actual hours worked, as a less labor-intensive method than requiring employees to 
prepare detailed personnel activity reports or timesheets.  
 
We communicated the same condition for the year ended December 31, 2011, in an audit 
report dated September 18, 2012.  The City immediately committed resources to update 
policies and develop a new payroll allocation system, however, the new system required 
complex programing.  Testing was completed in November 2012 and the new system was 
then available for employee use in January 2013. 
 
Effect of Condition and Questioned Costs 
 
Federal regulations allow for substitute time-recording systems with the approval of the 
grantor. Since the Department did not obtain approval for the alternative allocation system, 
salaries and benefits of $32,191 for the Department were not supported by time and effort 
documentation as required. Without documentation, the Department is unable to 
substantiate the accuracy of payroll costs to its Lead-Based Paint grant in the manner 
required by the grantor.  
 
Recommendation 
 
We again recommend the Community Housing and Human Services Department 
establish and follow internal controls to ensure it meets federal time and effort 
requirements. 
 
City’s Response 
 
The City either has already or will be taking the following actions related to this finding: 

• Effective January 1, 2013, the City implemented a time and effort tracking system 
so that salaries and benefits will be supported by the necessary documentation 
required by federal regulations.   

• In response to the questioned costs for 2012, the City is consulting with the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development to develop an acceptable 
rationale for allocating the questioned costs to the various grants administered by 
the Community, Housing and Human Services Department.   

 
The City thanks the State Auditors Office for their recommendations, and looks forward to 
the resolution of these items in subsequent audits. 

 
Auditor’s Remarks 
 
We thank the City for its cooperation and assistance during the audit.  We will review the 
status of this issue during our next audit.  
 
Applicable Laws and Regulations 
 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local and 
Indian Tribal Governments (2 CRF Part 225), Attachment B, Section 8(h), states in part: 
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(4) Where employees work on multiple activities or cost objectives, a 
distribution of their salaries or wages will be supported by personnel activity 
reports or equivalent documentation which meets the standards in 
subsection (5) unless a statistical sampling system (see subsection (6)) or 
other substitute system has been approved by the cognizant Federal 
agency. Such documentary support will be required where employees work 
on: 
 

(a) More than one Federal award, 
(b) A Federal award and a non Federal award, 
(c) An indirect cost activity and a direct cost activity, 
(d) Two or more indirect activities which are allocated using different 
allocation bases, or 
(e) An unallowable activity and a direct or indirect cost activity.  

 
(5) Personnel activity reports or equivalent documentation must meet the 
following standards: 
 

(a) They must reflect an after the fact distribution of the actual 
activity of each employee, 
 
(b) They must account for the total activity for which each employee 
is compensated, 
 
(c) They must be prepared at least monthly and must coincide with 
one or more pay periods, and 
 
(d) They must be signed by the employee. 
 
(e) Budget estimates or other distribution percentages determined 
before the services are performed do not qualify as support for 
charges to Federal awards but may be used for interim accounting 
purposes, provided that: 

 
(i) The governmental unit's system for establishing the 
estimates produces reasonable approximations of the 
activity actually performed; 
 
(ii) At least quarterly, comparisons of actual costs to 
budgeted distributions based on the monthly activity reports 
are made. Costs charged to Federal awards to reflect 
adjustments made as a result of the activity actually 
performed may be recorded annually if the quarterly 
comparisons show the differences between budgeted and 
actual costs are less than ten percent; and 
 
(iii) The budget estimates or other distribution percentages 
are revised at least quarterly, if necessary, to reflect 
changed circumstances. 
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Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs 

 
City of Spokane 
Spokane County 

January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 
 
 
6. The City did not have adequate internal controls to ensure compliance with 

cash management requirements for its Public Safety Partnership and 
Community Policing Grant. 
 
CFDA Number and Title: 16.710 - Public Safety Partnership and 

Community Policing Grant 
Federal Grantor Name: U.S. Department of Justice 
Federal Award/Contract 
Number: 

2005-IN-WX-0023 

Pass-through Entity Name: NA  
Pass-through Award/Contract 
Number: 

 
NA 

Questioned Cost Amount: $0 
 
Description of Condition 
 
During 2012, the Spokane Police Department spent $1,108,460 in federal Public Safety 
Partnership and Community Policing Grant funds.  The purpose of the grant is to enhance 
countywide communication capabilities if it is necessary to respond to and recover from 
disasters and incidents of terrorism.   
 
Cash Management  
Recipients of federal grants are required to establish internal controls to minimize the time 
that elapses between the receipt of federal funds from the grantor, and the payment of 
those funds to vendors who provide goods or services. Interest earnings that exceed $100 
per year from excess cash balances must be paid to the federal grantor. 
 
Our audit found the Police Department did not expend amounts requested in a timely 
manner. The City requested grant reimbursements five times during 2012.  In one 
instance, $282,197 was requested on August 24, 2012, and received from the grantor on 
August 27, 2012.  The City did not disburse these funds to vendors until October 3, 2012.  
In addition, the Department did not calculate interest earnings on the cash balance to 
determine if a portion of those earnings should be paid to the grantor. 
 
Cause of Condition 
 
City personnel did not follow established controls to:  

• Monitor grant funds received to ensure timely vendor payment. 
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• Evaluate cash balances for cash management requirements, including the 
calculation of interest earnings.  

 
Effect of Condition and Questioned Costs 
 
The City did not take steps to reduce the time elapsing from the date it received federal 
funds to the date it spent the funds on program costs.  The City calculated that it earned 
$228 of interest on the cash balances.  Interest earnings in excess of $100 must be 
returned to the grantor.   

 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend the City: 

• Establish appropriate controls to minimize the time between receipt of funds from 
the granting agency and disbursement of those funds.   

• Compute the amount of interest earned on advanced funds and remit excess 
amounts to the grantor when required.   

 
We also recommend the City remit the $128 of interest earned during the 2012 program 
year to the Department of Justice.     
 
City’s Response 
 
The City plans to implement a new city-wide procedure for grant funded expenditures that 
will eliminate the need to draw down cash from grantors in advance of payments to 
vendors or subrecipients who provide goods and services.  Interest earnings of $228 has 
been sent to the U.S. Department of Justice for the excess cash balances. 
 
The City thanks the State Auditors Office for their recommendation, and looks forward to 
the resolution of this item in subsequent audits. 
 
Auditor’s Remarks 
 
We thank the City for its cooperation and assistance during the audit and acknowledge its 
commitment to improving the condition described. We will review the status of this issue 
during our next audit. 
 
Applicable Laws and Regulations 
 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States Local 
Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations, Subpart C, Section 300 states in part: 

 
The auditee shall: 
  
(b) Maintain internal control over Federal programs that provides 
reasonable assurance that the auditee is managing Federal awards in 
compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements that could have a material effect on each of its Federal 
programs.  
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Title 28, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 66.20 Standards for financial management 
systems, states in part: 
 

(b)(7) Cash management. Procedures for minimizing the time elapsing 
between the transfer of funds from the U.S. Treasury and disbursement by 
grantees and subgrantees must be followed whenever advance payment 
procedures are used. Grantees must establish reasonable procedures to 
ensure the receipt of reports on subgrantees’ cash balances and cash 
disbursements in sufficient time to enable them to prepare complete and 
accurate cash transactions reports to the awarding agency. When 
advances are made by letter-of-credit or electronic transfer of funds 
methods, the grantee must make drawdowns as close as possible to the 
time of making disbursements. Grantees must monitor cash drawdowns by 
their subgrantees to assure that they conform substantially to the same 
standards of timing and amount as apply to advances to the grantees. 
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Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs 

 

City of Spokane 
Spokane County 

January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 
 

7. The City did not have adequate internal controls to ensure compliance with 
federal Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements. 
 
CFDA Number and Title: 66.458 Capitalization Grants for 

Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
Federal Grantor Name: Environmental Protection Agency 
Federal Award/Contract Number:  
Pass-through Entity Name: Washington State Department of 

Ecology 
Pass-through Award/Contract 
Number: 

L1200007 
L1200015 

Questioned Cost Amount: 
 

$0 

Description of Condition 
 
The City spent $3,108,402 in federal grant money on Combined Sewer Overflow basins 
38, 39 and 40 and a Summit Low-impact Urban Retrofit Project in 2012. 
 
For federally funded construction projects that exceeded $2,000, the Davis-Bacon Act 
requires contractor and subcontractors to pay the greater of federal or state prevailing 
wages to laborers.  Federal loan recipients must include a provision in construction 
contracts stating that the contractor and subcontractors must comply with the Davis-Bacon 
Act.  The provision requires the contractor and subcontractors submit a weekly copy of 
payroll and a statement of compliance (certified payrolls) to the grantee. 
 
During our audit, we found the City did not obtain certified weekly payrolls from the 
contractor or subcontractors during the project.  The City had an internal process to 
monitor the submitted weekly certified payrolls, however, the City informed the contractor 
that the funding used for the project was state funding and that certified payrolls were not 
required.   
 
We consider this internal control deficiency to be a material weakness. 
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Cause of Condition 
 
The City determined the funding source for the project was state funding in error.  As the 
use of state funds would not require compliance with Davis-Bacon Act requirements, the 
City informed the contractor to stop submitting certified payrolls. 

Effect of Condition and Questioned Costs 
 
The City only obtained 12 certified payrolls, out of an estimated 135, for the project.  
Therefore, the City could not ensure contractors and subcontractors paid employees 
proper prevailing wages in compliance with the law.  This could result in underpayment of 
wages to laborer working on the project. 

Recommendation 
 
We recommend the City accurately determine when federal funds are used on projects so 
it can follow established internal controls that ensure that all weekly certified payrolls are 
obtained in compliance with Davis Bacon requirements.  
 
City’s Response 
 
The City acknowledges the compliance error with federal Davis-Bacon prevailing wage 
requirements and will implement the following corrective action plan to address the 
auditor’s concern: 

• The City will implement additional controls related to its CSO (combined sewer 
overflow) tank projects that ensure that all projects that may involve loan funding 
contain Davis-Bacon language.  Engineering and accounting staff are more aware of 
these requirements so the finding was not repeated in subsequent years. 

Auditor’s Remarks 
 
We thank the City for its cooperation and assistance during the audit and acknowledge its 
commitment to improving the condition described. We will review the status of this issue 
during our next audit. 

Applicable Laws and Regulations 
 
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations, Subpart C, Section 300, state in part:  

 The auditee shall . . . 

(b)  Maintain internal control over Federal programs that provides 
reasonable assurance that the auditee is managing Federal awards in 
compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements that could have a material effect on each of its Federal 
programs. 

(c)  Comply with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements related to each of its Federal programs. 
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Government Auditing Standards, December 2011 Revision, paragraph 4.23 states:  

4.23 When performing GAGAS financial audits, auditors should 
communicate in the report on internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance, based upon the work performed, (1) significant deficiencies 
and material weaknesses in internal control; (2) instances of fraud and 
noncompliance with provisions of laws or regulations that have a material 
effect on the audit and any other instances that warrant the attention of 
those charged with governance; (3) noncompliance with provisions of 
contracts or grant agreements that has a material effect on the audit; and 
(4) abuse that has a material effect on the audit. 

The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants defines significant deficiencies and 
material weaknesses in its Codification of Statements on Auditing Standards, section 935, 
as follows:  

.11 For purposes of adapting GAAS to a compliance audit, the following 
terms have the meanings attributed as follows: 

Deficiency in internal control over compliance. A deficiency in internal 
control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal 
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, noncompliance on a timely basis. A deficiency in design exists 
when (a) a control necessary to meet the control objective is missing, or (b) 
an existing control is not properly designed so that, even if the control 
operates as designed, the control objective would not be met. A deficiency 
in operation exists when a properly designed control does not operate as 
designed or the person performing the control does not possess the 
necessary authority or competence to perform the control effectively. ... 

Material weakness in internal control over compliance. A deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a 
compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, 
on a timely basis. In this section, a reasonable possibility exists when the 
likelihood of the event is either reasonably possible or probable as defined 
as follows: 

Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring 
is more than remote but less than likely. 
Remote. The chance of the future event or events occurring is slight.  
Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur . . . 
 
Significant deficiency in internal control over compliance. A 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
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Title 29, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 3.3 states in part: 
 

Weekly statement with respect to payment of wages. 
 

(a) Each contractor or subcontractor engaged in the construction, 
prosecution, completion, or repair of any public building or public work, or 
building or work financed in whole or in part by loans or grants from the 
United States, shall furnish each week a statement with respect to the 
wages paid each of its employees engaged on work covered by this part 3 
and part 5 of this chapter during the preceding weekly payroll period.  This 
statement shall be executed by the contractor or subcontractor or by an 
authorized officer or employee of the contractor or subcontractor who 
supervises the payment of wages, and shall be on form WH 348, 
“Statement of Compliance”, or on an identical form on the back of WH 347, 
“Payroll (For Contractors Optional Use)” or on any form with identical 
wording. 

 
(c) The requirements of this section shall not apply to any contract of 
$2,000 or less. 
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Schedule of Audit Findings and Responses 
 

City of Spokane 
Spokane County 

January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 
 

8. The City did not have adequate internal controls in place to 
ensure accurate financial reporting of its Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

 
Background 
 
It is the responsibility of City management to design and follow internal controls 
that provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting. 
These controls should ensure financial events are properly identified and 
presented completely.  Controls should also ensure the criteria and accounting 
methodology applied to financial events is accurate.  Our audit identified 
deficiencies in internal controls that adversely affected the City’s ability to produce 
reliable financial statements and required schedules. 
 
All local governments in Washington that spend federal funds are required to 
prepare a Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) as part of the 
annual financial report. U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-
133 requires grantees to identify, in its accounts, all Federal program awards 
received and expended and to report all Federal program awards expended on the 
SEFA each fiscal year.  
 
Description of Condition 
 
Our audit identified the following deficiencies in internal controls over financial 
reporting that, when taken together, represent a significant deficiency: 
 

• Although the City has procedures to perform a review of the financial 
statements and required schedules, the review was not adequate to detect 
and correct errors prior to audit. 
 

• The City did not have a clear understanding of the SEFA reporting 
requirements for its Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving 
Funds loans and did not follow guidance provided in the Budgeting, 
Accounting and Reporting Standards (BARS) manual or OMB Circular 
A-133. 

 
Cause of Condition 
 
The City’s established controls were to report Capitalization Grants for Clean 
Water State Revolving Fund loans on the SEFA when revenues were received 
instead of when the related federal expenditures were incurred as required.  The 
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City did not request reimbursement for expenditures from 2012 until September of 
2013 which delayed when reimbursement was received from the Department of 
Ecology.  City management did not detect errors in the SEFA during the review 
process. 
 
Effect of Condition 
 
The City did not report $3,108,402 for the Capitalization Grants for Clean Water 
State Revolving Funds (CFDA 66.458) on the 2012 schedule.  This error is 
considered material to the 2012 SEFA and required this program to receive a 
federal single audit.  As a result, we have re-issued our 2012 report (originally 
dated September 19, 2013) to include our opinion over internal controls and 
compliance with grant requirements under CFDA 66.458.   
 
The City reported 2012 expenditures for the Capitalization Grants for Clean Water 
State Revolving Funds loans in subsequent years.  As a result of this 
misstatement, total program expenditures increased and created a new major 
program that required an audit.  The understatement of expenditures caused the 
City to fail the federal single audit requirement for audit coverage in 2012.   
 
The City subsequently corrected the misstatements described above. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend City management strengthen internal controls over SEFA 
reporting by ensuring: 
 
• Employees responsible for the preparation of the SEFA review and understand 

reporting requirements outlined in the Budgeting, Accounting and Reporting 
System (BARS) manual and OMB Circular A-133. 
 

• An effective independent review of the SEFA is performed to ensure all federal 
program expenditures are completely and accurately reported. 
 

City’s Response 
 
The City acknowledges the error in the SEFA and will implement the following 
corrective action plan to address the auditor’s concerns: 
 
• Enhanced communication with and oversight by the City’s Grants Management 

and Financial Assistance Department. 
 

• The city hired a Grants & Contracts Financial Assistance Manager position who 
will oversee the preparation of the SEFA. 
 

• Additional OMB Circular A-133 training will be sought for accounting staff that 
are directly related to grant accounting. 
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Auditor’s Remarks 
 
We thank the City for its cooperation and assistance during the audit and 
acknowledge its commitment to improving the condition described. We will review 
the status of this issue during our next audit. 
 
Applicable Laws and Regulations 

 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, Subpart E, Section 500, states in 
part: 

 (a) General. The audit shall be conducted in accordance with GAGAS . . . 
. 

Government Auditing Standards, December 2011 Revision, paragraph 4.23 
states: 

4.23 When performing GAGAS financial audits, auditors should 
communicate in the report on internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance, based upon the work performed, (1) 
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control; 
(2) instances of fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws or 
regulations that have a material effect on the audit and any other 
instances that warrant the attention of those charged with 
governance; (3) noncompliance with provisions of contracts or 
grant agreements that has a material effect on the audit; and (4) 
abuse that has a material effect on the audit. 

 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, Subpart B, Section 205, states in part: 

 
(a) Determining Federal awards expended. The determination of 
when an award is expended should be based on when the activity 
related to the award occurs. Generally, the activity pertains to 
events that require the non-Federal entity to comply with laws, 
regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements, 
such as: expenditure/expense transactions associated with grants, 
cost-reimbursement contracts, cooperative agreements, and direct 
appropriations; the disbursement of funds passed through to 
subrecipients; the use of loan proceeds under loan and loan 
guarantee programs; the receipt of property; the receipt of surplus 
property; the receipt or use of program income; the distribution or 
consumption of food commodities; the disbursement of amounts 
entitling the non-Federal entity to an interest subsidy; and, the 
period when insurance is in force. 

 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, Subpart C, Section 300, states in part: 

 
The auditee shall . . . 
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(a) Identify, in its accounts, all Federal awards received and 
expended and the Federal programs under which they were 
received. Federal program and award identification shall include, as 
applicable, the CFDA title and number, award number and year, 
name of the Federal agency, and name of the pass-through entity. 

 
(b)  Maintain internal control over Federal programs that provides 
reasonable assurance that the auditee is managing Federal awards 
in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts 
or grant agreements that could have a material effect on each of its 
Federal programs. 
 
(c) Comply with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts 
or grant agreements related to each of its Federal programs. 
 
(d) Prepare appropriate financial statements, including the 
schedule of expenditures of Federal awards in accordance with 
§___.310… 

 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, Subpart C, Section 310, states in part: 

 
(b) Schedule of expenditures of Federal awards.  The auditee shall 
also prepare a schedule of expenditures of Federal awards for the 
period covered by the auditee's financial statements . . . 

 
(1) List individual Federal programs by Federal agency… 

 
(2) For Federal awards received as a subrecipient, the name of 
the pass-through entity and identifying number assigned by the 
pass-through entity shall be included. 
 
(3)  Provide total Federal awards expended for each individual 
Federal program and the CFDA number or other identifying 
number when the CFDA information is not available . . .  

 
The OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement 2014. Environmental Protection 
Agency CFDA 66.458 Capitalization Grants For clean Water State Revolving 
Funds IV. Other Information states in part: 

 
Subrecipients  

CWSRF amounts are awarded by EPA to States as grants. The 
States then makes subawards in the form of loans to its 
subrecipients. Therefore, in determining the amount of Federal 
funds expended to be reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards (SEFA), subrecipients receiving CWSRF loans 
should include project expenditures incurred under these loans 
during the audit period as provided in OMB Circular A-133 
§__205(a). These are subawards—not direct Federal loans—and, 
therefore, neither OMB Circular A-133 §__.205(b) nor §__.205(d) 
applies when calculating the amount of Federal funds expended.  
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If a subrecipient incurs expenditures under an approved CWSRF 
loan in one audit period for which it is not reimbursed by the State 
until a subsequent audit period, those expenditures should be 
reported on the subrecipient’s SEFA in the year in which the outlay 
was made, regardless of when the subrecipient received 
reimbursement.  
 
It also is important to appropriately identify these CWSRF loans as 
subawards because of the impact on which Federal agency is the 
cognizant or oversight agency. When completing the SFSAC, the 
subrecipient should indicate that a CWSRF loan received from the 
State is not a direct award by showing an “N” in Part III, Item 6(h).  
 

The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants defines significant 
deficiencies and material weaknesses in its Codification of Statements on Auditing 
Standards, section 265, as follows: 
 

.07 For purposes of generally accepted auditing standards, the 
following terms have the meanings attributed as follows: 
 
Material weakness. A deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
 
Significant deficiency. A deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

 
RCW 43.09.200 Local government accounting – Uniform system of accounting, 
states in part: 
 

The state auditor shall formulate, prescribe, and install a system of 
accounting and reporting for all local governments, which shall be 
uniform for every public institution, and every public office, and 
every public account of the same class. 

 
Budget Accounting and Reporting System (BARS) Manual; Accounting; Accounting 
Principles and Internal Control; Internal Control states in part: 

 
Purpose and Definition of Internal Controls 
Internal control is defined by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), in standards 
adopted by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
and by the Federal Office of Management and Budget as follows: 
 
Internal control is a process – affected by those charged with 
governance, management and other personnel designed to provide 
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reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in 
the following categories: 
 
• Effectiveness and efficiency of operations 

 
• Compliance with applicable laws and regulations 

 
• Reliability of financial reporting 
 
Management and the governing body are responsible for the 
government’s performance, compliance and financial reporting. 
Therefore, the adequacy of internal control to provide reasonable 
assurance of achieving these objectives is also the responsibility of 
management and the governing body. The governing body has 
ultimate responsibility for ensuring adequate controls to achieve 
objectives, even though primary responsibility has been delegated 
to management. Since management and the governing body are 
assumed to work in harmony, both parties are collectively referred 
to as “management” throughout the rest of this section. 

Controls over Financial Reporting 
This objective refers to fair presentation of financial statements and 
required schedules in all material respects in accordance with the 
stated basis of accounting… 
 
Preparation of the annual report – Controls should ensure that 
financial statements and required schedules are properly compiled 
and prepared from source accounting records. Controls should also 
ensure correct presentation of statements and schedules . . . 
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Schedule of Prior Federal Audit Findings 
 

City of Spokane 
Spokane County 

January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 
 
 
This schedule presents the status of federal findings reported in prior audit periods.  The status 
listed below is the representation of the City of Spokane.  The State Auditor’s Office has reviewed 
the status as presented by the City. 
 

Audit Period: 
1/1/11 – 12/31/11 

Report Reference 
No:  1008352 

Finding Reference 
No:  1 

CFDA Number(s): 
14.218/14.253 

Federal Program Name and Granting 
Agency: 
Community Development Block 
Grants/Entitlement Grants (American 
Recovery and Reinvestment Act) –  
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 

Pass-Through Agency Name: 
NA 

Finding Caption: 
The City did not have adequate internal controls to ensure compliance with federal grant 
requirements for its Community Development Block Grants.   
Background: 
During fiscal year 2011, the City spent $7,064,951 in federal Community Development Block 
Grant funds, of which $335,431 were from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act.  
The City is to use this funding to provide housing and to expand economic opportunities for 
persons of low and moderate income.   
 
We found that the City’s East Central Community Center Director was also paid as the 
Executive Director of a non-profit organization that received funding as a block grant 
subrecipient which is a violation of federal grant conflict of interest rules.  East Central 
Community Center employees’ payroll costs were based on reimbursement requests 
submitted to the Department.  We found reimbursement requests from the Director’s non-
profit were not always supported by receipts, invoices or other documentation to determine 
the costs were grant related.  In addition, the Community Development Department’s 
employees allocate payroll costs to grants based on the total expenditures for each grant 
program rather than on the actual time worked.   
 
We also found the Department: 

• Did not attempt to report new awards of more than $25,000 made after October 1, 
2010 to a website created for tracking subrecipient awards of non-Recovery Act 
grants.   

• Does not enforce the contract term requiring a Financial Reconciliation Report for 
subrecipients and does not have a process to ensure subrecipients obtain a federal 
audit and correct findings when necessary.   

 
 
Washington State Auditor's Office

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 

Page 38



• Did not have adequate internal controls over program income to determine whether it 
was accurately calculated, recorded and used in accordance with program 
requirements.   

Status of Corrective Action: (check one) 
 Fully 

Corrected 
 Partially 
Corrected 

 No Corrective 
Action Taken 

 Finding is considered no 
longer valid 

Corrective Action Taken: 
As of January 1, 2013, the City implemented a time tracking system used by all City staff 
whose salaries and benefits are charged to the Community Development Block Grant to 
ensure compliance with time and effort requirements   The City also reviewed, updated and 
provided training to City staff to ensure that federal guidelines are followed regarding real or 
perceived conflicts of interest in the award and administration of contracts.  The City also 
reported all subrecipient awards required by the Federal Funding Accountability and 
Transparency Act.  In addition, the City obtained and reviewed all Financial Reconciliation 
Reports required by subrecipients to determine compliance with grant requirements.    The 
City also reviewed and trained City staff on procedures for proper review of allowable activities 
and expenses. 

 
Audit Period: 
1/1/11 – 12/31/11 

Report Reference 
No:  1008352 

Finding Reference 
No:  2 

CFDA Number(s): 
14.907 

Federal Program Name and Granting 
Agency: 
Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control In 
Privately-Owned Housing (American 
Recovery and Reinvestment Act) – U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 

Pass-Through Agency Name: 
NA 

Finding Caption: 
The City’s Community Development Department did not have adequate internal controls to 
ensure compliance with time and effort requirements for its Lead-Based Paint Grant.  
Background: 
During fiscal year 2011, the City spent $1,319,124 in federal Lead-Based Paint grant funds 
from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act.  The City is to use this grant money to 
evaluate and control lead-based paint hazards in low-income residential housing.  City 
employees administer and monitor the program.  The City contracts with vendors to perform 
the hazard assessments and housing renovations.  The City delegates administration of this 
program to its Community Development Department.   
 
We audited the Community Development Department’s internal controls over payroll to 
determine whether the $97,016 in salaries and benefits charged to the grant were supported 
by time and effort documentation as required by federal regulations.  Depending on the 
number of activities in which an employee works, time and effort documentation can be 
provided on a semi-annual certification or a monthly personnel activity report, such as a 
timesheet.   
 
Our audit identified a significant deficiency in internal controls. We found the Department’s 
employees allocate payroll costs to grants based on the total expenditures for each grant 
program rather than on the actual time worked.   
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Status of Corrective Action: (check one) 
 Fully 

Corrected 
 Partially 
Corrected 

 No Corrective 
Action Taken 

 Finding is considered no 
longer valid 

Corrective Action Taken: 
As of January 1, 2013, the City implemented a time tracking system used by all City staff 
whose salaries and benefits are charged to the Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control In Privately-
Owned Housing Grants to ensure compliance with time and effort requirements.   
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal 
Control over Financial Reporting and on 

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 

Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards 

 
City of Spokane 
Spokane County 

January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 
 
 
Mayor and City Council 
City of Spokane 
Spokane, Washington 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of 
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Spokane, Spokane County, Washington, as of and for 
the year ended December 31, 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated September 19, 2013.  During the year ended December 31, 2012, the City implemented 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred 
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial statements will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  We 
did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of 
Audit Findings and Responses as Finding 8, that we consider to be a significant deficiency.  
 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of the City’s compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required 
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the City’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and 
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  However, 
this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.  It also serves to 
disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government 
operations. 
 

 
 
TROY KELLEY 
STATE AUDITOR 
OLYMPIA, WA 
 
September 19, 2013, except for our report on the Schedule of Federal Awards and the matters 
discussed in the Schedule of Audit Findings and Responses 8, for which the date is January 25, 
2016. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance 
For Each Major Federal Program and on 

Internal Control Over Compliance in 
Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 

 
City of Spokane 
Spokane County 

January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 
 
 
Mayor and City Council 
City of Spokane 
Spokane, Washington 
 
 
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM 
 
We have audited the compliance of the City of Spokane, Spokane County, Washington, with the 
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2012.  The City’s major federal 
programs are identified in the accompanying Federal Summary.   
 
Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grants applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those 
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.  
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances.    
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program.  Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance.  
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Basis for Qualified Opinion on CFDA 11.555 Public Safety Interoperable Communications 
Grant Program, CFDA 14.218/14.253 Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement 
Grants Program Cluster and CFDA 14.235 Supportive Housing Program 
As described in Finding 1 in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs, the City did not comply with requirements regarding its CFDA 11.555 Public 
Safety Interoperable Communications Grant Program for cash management and period of 
availability of funds.  As described in Finding 2 in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Audit 
Findings and Questioned Costs, the City did not comply with requirements regarding its 
CFDA 14.218/14.253 Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants Program for 
cash management, allowable costs/cost principles, program income and reporting.  As described 
in Finding 3 in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and Questioned Costs, the 
City did not comply with requirements regarding its CFDA 14.235 Supportive Housing Program 
for allowable costs/cost principles, matching and subrecipient monitoring.  Compliance with such 
requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the City to comply with the requirements applicable 
to the programs. 
 
Qualified Opinion on CFDA 11.555 Public Safety Interoperable Communications Grant 
Program, CFDA 14.218/14.253 Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 
Program Cluster and CFDA 14.235 Supportive Housing Program 
In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its CFDA 11.555 Public Safety 
Interoperable Communications Grant Program, CFDA 14.218/14.253 Community Development 
Block Grants/Entitlement Grants Program and CFDA 14.235 Supportive Housing Program for the 
year ended December 31, 2012.   
 
Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other Major Federal Programs 
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its other 
major federal programs identified in the accompanying Federal Summary for the year ended 
December 31, 2012. 
 
Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures also disclosed instances of noncompliance with those 
requirements which are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which 
are described in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and Questioned Costs as 
Findings 4, 5, 6 and 7.  Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect 
to these matters. 
 
City’s Response to Findings 
The City’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and Questioned Costs.  The City’s response 
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, 
we express no opinion on the response. 
 
Report Reissuance 
This report, which replaces a previously issued report, has been reissued to report on CFDA 
66.468 Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds as an additional major 
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program.  This report has been changed to include additional references for noncompliance, and 
for material weaknesses in internal control over compliance, as reported herein. 
 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
 
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with 
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal 
program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal 
control over compliance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  However, as discussed 
below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be 
material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis.  We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and Questioned Costs as Findings 1, 2, 3, 6 
and 7 to be material weaknesses. 
 
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  We consider the 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of 
Federal Audit Findings and Questioned Costs as Findings 4 and 5 to be significant deficiencies. 
 
City’s Response to Findings 

The City's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and Questioned Costs.  The 
City's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance 
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 
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PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of OMB Circular A-133.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose.  However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.  It also 
serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess 
government operations. 
 

 
 
TROY KELLEY 
STATE AUDITOR 
OLYMPIA, WA 
 
September 19, 2013, except for our report on the CFDA 66.458 Capitalization Grants for Drinking 
Water State Revolving Funds program, for which the date is January 25, 2016.   
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial 
Statements  

City of Spokane 
Spokane County 

January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 

Mayor and City Council 
City of Spokane 
Spokane, Washington 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
City of Spokane, Spokane County, Washington, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s 
basic financial statements as listed on page 50.   

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.   

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Spokane, as of 
December 31, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 
Matters of Emphasis 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2012, the City adopted new accounting 
guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of 
Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position.  Our opinion is 
not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 52 through 65, budgetary comparison 
information on pages 125 through 126, pension trust fund information on pages 127 through 129 
and information on postemployment benefits other than pensions on page 130 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic or historical context.  We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
Supplementary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements.  The accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profit Organizations.  This schedule is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
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America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
The Combining Schedule for General Fund Accounts Balance Sheet, Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, and Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance Budget to Actual for each fund included in the General Fund Accounts 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements.  Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on it. 
 
OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
September 19, 2013 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
 
TROY KELLEY 
STATE AUDITOR 
OLYMPIA, WA 
 
September 19, 2013, except for our report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, 
for which the date is January 25, 2016.   
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Financial Section 
 

City of Spokane 
Spokane County 

January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 
 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis – 2012 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Statement of Net Position – 2012 
Statement of Activities – 2012 
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds – 2012 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position – Governmental 

Funds – 2012 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Governmental 

Funds – 2012 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 

Balance to the Statement of Activities – 2012 
Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds – 2012 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position – Proprietary 

Funds – 2012 
Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds – 2012 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position – Fiduciary Funds – 2012 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position – Fiduciary Funds – 2012 
Notes to Financial Statements – 2012 

 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget to Actual 
– General Fund Accounts – 2012 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget to Actual 
– Special Assessment Construction Fund – 2012 

Schedule of Funding Progress – Employees’ Retirement System, Firefighters Pension 
System and Police Pension System – 2012 

Schedule of Employer Contributions – Employees’ Retirement System, Firefighters’ 
Pension System and Police Pension System - 2012 

Other Postemployment Benefits – Firefighters’ Pension System and Police Pension 
System – 2012 

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information – 2012  
 
  

 
 
Washington State Auditor's Office

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 

Page 50



SUPPLEMENTARY AND OTHER INFORMATION 
 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2012 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2012 
Schedule for General Fund Accounts – Balance Sheet – 2012 
Schedule for General Fund Accounts – Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances – 2012 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget to Actual 

– each fund included in the General Fund Accounts – 2012  
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1 2 3 4 6

  

FEDERAL AGENCY NAME/ FEDERAL PROGRAM CFDA   OTHER I.D. From From Foot-

PASS-THROUGH AGENCY NAME NUMBER NUMBER Pass- Direct Total note

NAME Through Awards  Ref.

Awards  

U.S. Dept of Commerce / Public Safety Interoperable 11.555 1,745,424 1,745,424 10

pass-through from WA State Communications Grant Program

Military Department

U. S. Department of Housing Community Development Block 14.218 Program Income 20,930 3

and Urban Development Grants/Entitlement Grants Program Income 63,680 3

B10-MC-530006 1,175,280 10

Program Income 26,830 3

B11-MC-530006 2,045,008 10

Program Income 1,066,916 3

Program Income 341,157 3

Subtotal 4,739,801 4,739,801

U. S. Department of Housing Community Development Block 14.228 08-F6401-019 368,524

and Urban Development/ Grants/State's program and 11-67400-004 306,964

Pass-Through from WA Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii Subtotal 675,488 675,488

State Dept. of Commerce  

U. S. Department of Housing  Emergency Solutions Grant 14.231 S11-MC-530002 185,055 10

and Urban Development Program S12-MC-530002 77,424 10

Subtotal 262,479 262,479

U. S. Department of Housing Supportive Housing Program 14.235 N/A 803,734 10

and Urban Development N/A 95,208 10

N/A 1,096,440 10

Subtotal 1,995,382 1,995,382

U. S. Department of Housing Shelter Plus Care 14.238 N/A 293,050 10

and Urban Development N/A 296,674 10

Subtotal 589,724 589,724

U. S. Department of Housing Home Investment Partnerships 14.239 Program Income 76,742 3

and Urban Development Program M08-MC-530201 18,763 10

M09-MC-530201 13,426 10

Program Income 36,986 3

M10-MC-530201 1,075,376 10

M11-MC-530201 122,115 10

Program Income 61,275 3

M12-MC-530201 5,844 10

Program Income 62,461 3

Subtotal 1,472,988 1,472,988

U. S. Department of Housing ARRA-Community Development 14.253 B09-MY-53-0006 50,000 50,000 7, 9A

and Urban Development Block Grant ARRA Entitlement  

Grants (CDBG-R) (Recovery Act

Funded)

U. S. Department of Housing ARRA-Neighborhood Stabilization 14.256 B09-NI-WA-0009 6,493 6,493 7, 9A

and Urban Development Program (Recovery Act Funded) 10

MCAG NO. 0724                                                    CITY OF SPOKANE                                                          Schedule 16

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2012

5

Expenditures

The accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are an integral part of this Schedule. 
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FEDERAL AGENCY NAME/ FEDERAL PROGRAM CFDA   OTHER I.D. From From Foot-

PASS-THROUGH AGENCY NAME NUMBER NUMBER Pass- Direct Total note

NAME Through Awards  Ref.

Awards  

MCAG NO. 0724                                                    CITY OF SPOKANE                                                          Schedule 16

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2012

5

Expenditures

U. S. Department of Housing ARRA-Homeless Prevention and 14.257 S09-MY-53-0002 357,483 357,483 7, 9A

and Urban Development Rapid Re-Housing Program 10

 (Recovery Act Funded)

U.S. Department of Housing Lead Hazard Reduction 14.905 WA LHD 0239-12 173,782 173,782

and Urban Development Demonstration Grant Program

U.S. Department of Housing ARRA-Lead-Based Paint Hazard 14.907 WA LHB 0429-08 411,368 7, 9A

and Urban Development Control in Privately-Owned 10

Housing (Recovery Act Funded) Program Income 100 3

Subtotal 411,468 411,468

U.S. Department of Interior/ Historic Preservation Fund 15.904 FY12-61012-015 8,837 8,837

Pass-Through from WA Grants-In-Aid

State Dept. of Archaeology

and Historic Preservation

U.S. Department of Justice/ Domestic Cannabis Eradication/ 16.C120829FED C120829FED 18,926 18,926 9B

Pass-Through from Suppression

WA State Patrol 

U.S. Department of Justice Enhanced Training and Services 16.528 N/A 17,256 17,256 10

to End Violence and Abuse  

of Women Later in Life

U.S. Department of Justice Bulletproof Vest Partnership 16.607 N/A 3,233 3,233

Program

U.S. Department of Justice Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 25,503 25,503

Pass-Through from WA

State Dept. of Commerce

U.S. Department of Justice Public Safety Partnership & 16.710 N/A 1,076,283 10

Community Policing Grants N/A 21,199

N/A 10,978

Subtotal 1,108,460 1,108,460

U.S. Department of Justice Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 16.738 N/A 97,074 10

Assistance Grant Program Program Income 5,491

N/A 145,763 10

N/A 14,656 10

Subtotal 262,984 262,984

U.S. Department of Justice/ Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 16.738 M12-34021-016 36,610 36,610  

Pass-Through from Assistance Grant Program

from Spokane County 

36,610 262,984 299,594

U.S. Department of Justice/ Congressionally Recommended 16.753 N/A 2,015 2,015

Pass-Through from Spokane Awards

County Sheriff's Office

Total - CFDA 16.738

The accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are an integral part of this Schedule.
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FEDERAL AGENCY NAME/ FEDERAL PROGRAM CFDA   OTHER I.D. From From Foot-

PASS-THROUGH AGENCY NAME NUMBER NUMBER Pass- Direct Total note

NAME Through Awards  Ref.

Awards  

MCAG NO. 0724                                                    CITY OF SPOKANE                                                          Schedule 16

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2012

5

Expenditures

U.S. Department of Justice ARRA-Recovery Act - Edward 16.804 N/A 302,343 302,343 7, 10

Byrne Memorial Justice 

Assistance Grant (JAG) 

Program/Grants to Units

of Local Government

U.S. Department of Labor/ WIA Adult Program 17.258 6112-1101 3,289

Pass-Through from WA 61112-7101 29,954 10

State Employment 6112-1102 788,929 10

Security Department 6112-7102 73,610 10

6112-1103 243,803 10

6112-7400-04 52,130 10

6112-7620-09 166,796 10

6612-7620-15 35,947 10

6112-7620-17 104,182  

6112-7620-18 110,000 10

6112-7620-21 11,220 10

6112-6982-02 1,676 10

6112-6992-02 548 10

6112-7301 51,941 10

6112-1302 197,403

Program Income 23,117

6112-7302 155,035 10

Program Income 19,563

6112-1303 5,648 10

Program Income 12,724

Subtotal 2,087,515 2,087,515

 WIA Youth Activities 17.259 6112-7001 760,201 10

Program Income 1,136

6112-7002 383,396 10

Subtotal 1,144,733 1,144,733

ARRA-WIA Dislocated Workers 17.260 6112-4670-02 84,866 84,866 7, 10

U.S. Department of Labor WIA Pilots, Demonstrations, and 17.261 EA-21593-11-60-A  169,632 169,632

Research Projects

ARRA-Program of Competitive 17.275 IAA 774-10 528,758 528,758 7, 10

Grants for Worker Training and 

Placement in High Growth and

Emerging Industry Sectors

U.S. Department of 

Labor/Pass-Through from 

WA State Employment 

Security Department

U.S. Department of 

Labor/Pass-Through from 

WA State Employment 

Security Department

U.S. Department of 

Labor/Pass-Through from 

Workforce Training and 

Education Coordinating 

Board

The accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are an integral part of this Schedule.
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MCAG NO. 0724                                                    CITY OF SPOKANE                                                          Schedule 16

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2012

5

Expenditures

WIA Dislocated Worker 17.278 6112-1201 3,923

Formula Grants 6112-7201 150,349 10

6112-1202 889,807 10

Subtotal 1,044,079 1,044,079

Highway Planning and 20.205 STPD 3850(001) 730,324

Construction STPUL-4001 (001) 883,502

Program Income 275,625

CM-9932(034) 9,056

CM-0002(261) 519,460

CM-3850(004) 36,651

STPD 3850(006) 42,816

CM-0395(084) 28,655

CM-0291(022) 2,314

STPUL 3756(004) 200,901

CM-3948(006) 49,921

TCSP-1220(024) 6,922

STPE-EN10(020) 510,306

TCSP-09WA(008) 19,246

HSIP-1220(022) 20,073

STPUL-1220(025) 15,016

STPUL-1220(026) 28,154

STPUL-3792(001) 11,968

CM-9932(039) 50,947

CM-0002(828) 23,705

CM-3948(005) 2,509

CM-3794(002) 42,903

STPUL-1220(027) 30,551

Subtotal 3,541,525 3,541,525

U.S. Department of National Motor Carrier Safety 20.218 C090429GSC 4,720 4,720

Transportation/Pass-

Through from

Washington State Patrol

U.S. Department of State and Community Highway 20.600 N/A 10,585

Transportation/Pass- Safety N/A 4,660

Through from WA State N/A 280

Traffic Safely Commission Subtotal 15,525 15,525

U.S. Department of Alcohol Impaired Driving 20.601 N/A 5,722

Transportation/Pass- Countermeasures Incentive N/A 712

Through from WA State Grants 1 Subtotal 6,434 6,434

Traffic Safely Commission

U.S. Department of 

Labor/Pass-Through from 

WA State Employment 

Security Department

U.S. Department of 

Transportation/Pass-

Through from WA State 

Department of 

Transportation

The accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are an integral part of this Schedule. 
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MCAG NO. 0724                                                    CITY OF SPOKANE                                                          Schedule 16

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2012

5

Expenditures

U.S. Department of Occupant Protection Incentive 20.602 N/A 2,947 2,947

Transportation/Pass- Grants

Through from WA State

Traffic Safely Commission

Agency Pass-Through from Capitization Grants for Drinking 66.458 L1200015 16,429 11

Agency Pass-Through from Water State Revolving Funds L1200007 3,091,972 11

Subtotal 3,108,402 3,108,402

Environmental Protection Capitization Grants for Drinking 66.468 N19362 30,000 30,000 10

Agency Pass-Through from Water State Revolving Funds

WA State Dept. of Health

Environmental Protection Solid Waste Management 66.808 X1-00J49801-0 16,621 16,621

Agency Assistance Grants

U.S. Dept of Energy ARRA-Energy Efficiency and 81.128 SC0001734 164,890 164,890 7

Conservation Block Grant

Program (EECBG)

U.S. Dept of Energy/ ARRA-Energy Efficiency and 81.128 DE-EE0000849 50,869 50,869 7

Pass-Through from WA Conservation Block Grant

State Dept. of Commerce Program (EECBG)

50,869 164,890 215,759

U.S. Dept of Health & Human Special Programs for the 93.044 11-12:58,41:12 3,461 3,461

Services/Pass-Through Aging_Title III, Part B_Grants

from Aging & Long Term for Supportive Services and 

Care of Eastern Washington Senior Centers

U.S. Dept of Health & Human Special Programs for the 93.045 N/A 16,219 16,219

Services/Pass-Through Aging_Title III, Part C_

from Greater Spokane  Nutrition Services

County Meals on Wheels

U. S. Department of Assistance to Firefighters Grant 97.044 EMW-2008-FO-08524 5,222

Homeland Security EMW-2009-FO-11955 1,164

EMW-2011-FO-06717 15,858

Subtotal 22,244 22,244

U. S. Department of Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 N/A 49,712

Homeland Security/ N/A 6,022

Pass-Through from N/A 25,840

Spokane County E12-173 10,216 4

Department of E11-119 31,843 4

Emergency Management Subtotal 123,633 123,633

Total - CFDA 81.128

The accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are an integral part of this Schedule.
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2012

5

Expenditures

U. S. Department of Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 60589581 10,000 4

Homeland Security/ 60594631 1,420 4

Pass-Through from 60594641 626 4

State of Idaho Military 60594651 904 4

Division 60594661 6,288 4

Subtotal 19,238 19,238

142,871 142,871

14,325,727 12,127,263 26,452,990

Total - CFDA 97.067

                    Total Federal Awards Expended

The accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are an integral part of this Schedule.
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 CITY OF SPOKANE, WASHINGTON 
 NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS  
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 
 
NOTE 1 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

 This schedule is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the City's financial statements.  The 
City uses the modified accrual basis of accounting for all governmental funds.  The accrual basis of 
accounting is used for all proprietary, non-expendable trust and pension trust funds. 

 

NOTE 2 - PROGRAM COSTS 

 The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the Federal portion of the program 
costs.  Entire program costs, including the City's portion, may be more than shown. 

 

NOTE 3 - REVOLVING LOAN - PROGRAM INCOME 

 The City of Spokane has a revolving loan program for low-income housing. Under this federal 
program, repayments to the City are considered program revenues (income) and loans of such funds 
to eligible recipients are considered expenditures.  The amount of loan funds disbursed to program 
participants for the year for the HOME program was $ 1,155,190, for the Community Development 
Block Grants was $ 875,292, and for the Lead Safe Spokane program was $246,986. These 
amounts are presented in this schedule.  The amount of principal and interest received in loan 
repayments for the year for the HOME program was $ 101,732, and for the Community Development 
Block Grants was $ 851,598. 

 

NOTE 4 – NONCASH AWARDS – EQUIPMENT  
The City received equipment from Spokane City/County Department of Emergency Management 
that was purchased with federal Homeland Security funds.  The amount reported on the SEFA is the 
value of the property on the date it was received by the City and priced by Homeland Security.   

  

NOTE 5 – INDIRECT COST RATE 

The City did not use an indirect cost rate in 2012.     
 

NOTE 6 – INCOME AFTER THE GRANT PERIOD 

            The City leases property to a private entity that was originally purchased with Federal Highway     
Planning and Construction dollars.  As the grant period has ended there is no reference to these        
funds on the SEFA but the City is required to restrict these funds for activities eligible for funding        
under title 23 of the United States Code. For 2012 the income received was $110,410; the                 
expenditures for maintenance were $21,103 for total restricted revenue of $89,307.  The property 
was sold during 2012 with the proceeds of that sale also being restricted revenue. 

          
NOTE 7 – AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT (ARRA) OF 2009 
 Expenditures for this program were funded by ARRA 
 
NOTE 8 – FEMA DISASTER ASSISTANCE 
            The City was approved for FEMA disaster assistance for Snowstorm 2008.  While all disaster 

assistance that had been approved and received during 2009, 2010, and 2011 was included on that 
year’s SEFA there are some remaining costs that were approved in 2010 but not received in 2012.  
The final assistance for snowstorm 2008 is expected to be received in 2013. 
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CITY OF SPOKANE, WASHINGTON 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

JANUARY 1, 2011 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2011 
 
 
NOTE 9 – CFDA NUMBER CLARIFICATION               
              (A)  Four ARRA funded grants on the SEFA have had their CFDA numbers archived on the CFDA 

website.  The grants were awarded under these CFDA numbers and the City is still administering the 
grant programs.  They are 14.253, 14.256, 14.257, and 14.907.    

              (B)  The U.S. Department of Justice Domestic Cannabis Eradication/Suppression program does not 
have a distinct CFDA number.  It is presented on the SEFA as 16 which is the U.S. Department of 
Justice federal agency’s two digit prefix followed by the contract or grant number. 

      
  
 
NOTE 10 – AMOUNTS AWARDED TO SUBRECIPIENTS 

            Included in the total amount expended for the City of Spokane is $10,485,537 that was passed            
through to subrecipients that administered their own projects.      

             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE 11 – FEDERAL LOANS 

The City was approved by the State of Washington Department of Ecology to receive loans totaling                                                   
$8,403,567.  The Department of Ecology computes the ratio that is used to determine Federal funds 
from State funds for loan proceeds received by the City.  While the amount of $3,108,402 reported 
on the SEFA is 100% of expenditures, reimbursement for the federal portion of these loans is 
$2,590,231 based on 83.33% as determined by the Department of Ecology.  

 

CFDA 11.555 1,679,305  

CFDA 14.218 552,456  

CFDA 14.231 250,147  

CFDA 14.235 1,819,981  

CFDA 14.238 586,314  

CFDA 14.239 188,955  

CFDA 14.256 5,939  

CFDA 14.257 260,824  

CFDA 16.528 5,591  

CFDA 16.710 796,207  

CFDA 16.738 76,002  

CFDA 16.804 179,665  

CFDA 17.258 1,536,154  

CFDA 17.259 957,778  

CFDA 17.260 84,759  

CFDA 17.275 523,890  

CFDA 17.278 951,570  

CFDA 66.468 30,000  

 
10,485,537  
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Corrective Action Plan for Findings Reported Under OMB Circular A-133 
 

City of Spokane 
Spokane County 

January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 
 
This schedule presents the corrective action planned by the auditee for findings reported in this 
report in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.  The information in this schedule is the 
representation of the City.   
 

Finding ref 
number:  1 

Finding caption: 
The City did not have adequate internal controls to properly manage 
grant funds in compliance with federal grant requirements for its Public 
Safety Interoperable Communications Grant. 

Name, address, and telephone of auditee contact person: 
Pam Dolan, Director of Accounting 
W. 808 Spokane Falls Blvd. 
Spokane, WA 99201 
(509) 625-6034 
Corrective action the auditee plans to take in response to the finding: 
Establish a new city-wide process for ensuring that any draws of federal grant dollars occur 
after the grant expense has been paid.  This process will eliminate any cash balances. 

 
Review procedures and training of City staff on procedures for monitoring period of availability 
on payments for grant-related expenditures. 
Anticipated date to complete the corrective action: December 31, 2013 

 
Finding ref 
number:  2 

Finding caption: 
The City did not have adequate internal controls to comply with federal 
grant requirements for its Community Development Block Grants. 

Name, address, and telephone of auditee contact person: 
Pam Dolan, Director of Accounting 
W. 808 Spokane Falls Blvd. 
Spokane, WA 99201 
(509) 625-6034 
Corrective action the auditee plans to take in response to the finding: 
Create Excel tool to use for tracking employee time. Based on output of time tracking, develop 
indirect cost plan and get approval from HUD. Use approved method to address questioned 
costs. 

 
Establish a detailed calendar and process to ensure all future time sensitive financial grant 
requirements are met. 

 
Establish a new city-wide process for ensuring that any draws of federal grant dollars occur 
after the grant expense has been paid.  This process will eliminate any cash balances. 
Anticipated date to complete the corrective action: November 30, 2013 and December 30, 
2013 
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Finding ref 
number:  3 

Finding caption: 
The City did not have adequate internal controls to ensure compliance 
with federal grant requirements for its Supporting Housing Grant. 

Name, address, and telephone of auditee contact person: 
Pam Dolan, Director of Accounting 
W. 808 Spokane Falls Blvd. 
Spokane, WA 99201 
(509) 625-6034 
Corrective action the auditee plans to take in response to the finding: 
Ensure all grant requirements are met by confirming and reviewing detailed checklists in place 
for all grants. 
Anticipated date to complete the corrective action: December 31, 2013 

 
Finding ref 
number:  4 

Finding caption: 
The City did not have adequate internal controls to ensure compliance 
with time and effort requirements for its Home Investment Partnership 
Program Grant. 

Name, address, and telephone of auditee contact person: 
Pam Dolan, Director of Accounting 
W. 808 Spokane Falls Blvd. 
Spokane, WA 99201 
(509) 625-6034 
Corrective action the auditee plans to take in response to the finding: 
Create Excel tool to use for tracking employee time. Based on output of time tracking, develop 
indirect cost plan and get approval from HUD. Use approved method to address questioned 
costs 
Anticipated date to complete the corrective action: December 31, 2013 

 
Finding ref 
number:  5 

Finding caption: 
The City did not have adequate internal controls to ensure compliance 
with time and effort requirements for its Lead-Based Paint Grant. 

Name, address, and telephone of auditee contact person: 
Pam Dolan, Director of Accounting 
W 808 Spokane Falls Blvd. 
Spokane, WA 99201 
(509) 625-6034 
Corrective action the auditee plans to take in response to the finding: 
Create Excel tool to use for tracking employee time. Based on output of time tracking, develop 
indirect cost plan and get approval from HUD. Use approved method to address questioned 
costs. 
Anticipated date to complete the corrective action: December 31, 2013 
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Finding ref 
number:  6 

Finding caption: 
The City did not have adequate internal controls to ensure compliance 
with cash management requirements for its Public Safety Partnership 
and Community Policing Grant. 

Name, address, and telephone of auditee contact person: 
Pam Dolan, Director of Accounting 
W. 808 Spokane Falls Blvd. 
Spokane, WA 99201 
(509) 625-6034 
Corrective action the auditee plans to take in response to the finding: 
Establish a new city-wide process for ensuring that any draws of federal grant dollars occur after 
the grant expense has been paid.  This process will eliminate any cash balances. 

Anticipated date to complete the corrective action: December 31, 2013 

Finding ref number:  
7 

Finding caption: 
The City did not have adequate internal controls to ensure compliance with 
federal Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements.   

Name, address, and telephone of auditee contact person: 
Kim Bustos 
W. 808 Spokane Falls Blvd. 
Spokane, WA 99201 
(509) 625-6034 
Corrective action the auditee plans to take in response to the finding: 
The City acknowledges the compliance error with federal  Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements 
and will implement the following corrective action plan to address the auditor’s concern: 

• The City will implement additional controls related to its CSO (combined sewer overflow) tank
projects that ensure that all projects that may involve loan funding contain Davis-Bacon
language.  Engineering and accounting staff are more aware of these requirements so the
finding was not repeated in subsequent years.

Anticipated date to complete the corrective action: 12/31/16 

Finding ref number:  
8 

Finding caption: 
The City did not have adequate internal controls in place to ensure accurate 
financial reporting of its Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

Name, address, and telephone of auditee contact person: 
Kim Bustos 
W. 808 Spokane Falls Blvd. 
Spokane, WA 99201 
(509) 625-6034 
Corrective action the auditee plans to take in response to the finding: 
The City acknowledges the error in the SEFA and will implement the following corrective action plan 
to address the auditor’s concerns: 

• Enhanced communication with and oversight by the City’s Grants Management and
Financial Assistance Department.

• The city hired a Grants & Contracts Financial Assistance Manager position who will
oversee the preparation of the SEFA.

• Additional OMB Circular A-133 training will be sought for accounting staff that are
directly related to grant accounting.

Anticipated date to complete the corrective action: 12/31/16 
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ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE 

The State Auditor's Office is established in the state's Constitution and is part of the executive 
branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and 
serves four-year terms. 

We work with our audit clients and citizens to achieve our vision of government that works for 
citizens, by helping governments work better, cost less, deliver higher value, and earn greater 
public trust. 

In fulfilling our mission to hold state and local governments accountable for the use of public 
resources, we also hold ourselves accountable by continually improving our audit quality and 
operational efficiency and developing highly engaged and committed employees. 

As an elected agency, the State Auditor's Office has the independence necessary to objectively 
perform audits and investigations. Our audits are designed to comply with professional standards 
as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws. 

Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the 
part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of 
higher education. In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local 
governments as well as fraud, state whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations.  

The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available 
on our website and through our free, electronic subscription service.  

We take our role as partners in accountability seriously, and provide training and technical 
assistance to governments, and have an extensive quality assurance program. 

Contact information for the State Auditor’s Office 

Deputy Director for Communications 

 

 

 Adam Wilson 

 Adam.Wilson@sao.wa.gov 

 (360) 902-0367 

Public Records requests  PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov 

Main telephone  (360) 902-0370 

Toll-free Citizen Hotline  (866) 902-3900 

Website  www.sao.wa.gov 
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http://portal.sao.wa.gov/ReportSearch
http://portal.sao.wa.gov/ReportSearch
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